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Chairman’s Message
Dear Shareholders

I present to you the 21st Annual Report of your company and I am pleased to present that your
company, RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED continues to strive for growth with the economy on
upswing post pandemic your Company has achieved robust growth year on year. We continued
to demonstrate our proficiency and determination in achieving operational excellence and
financial soundness in spite of the unprecedented pandemic scenario and that placed your
company in best position to leverage the growth phase of economy.

To remain robust and resilient in an ever-changing business environment we stayed focused on
being nimble and adaptive to the situations coming our way and thus carrying forward our legacy
of contributing to the growth of the country by delivering value to our shareholders.

Across the entire world COVID-19 has impacted the lives of everyone. My sympathies are with
everyone who is directly or indirectly affected by the virus and wish for the good health and safety
of all. Apart from health crises the pandemic badly affected the business fraternity due to complete
lock down in almost every corner of the globe and presented us with an economic crisis.

However, in post COVID Scenario Indian Economy is the fastest growing major economy in the
world and with huge focus by the Government on Infrastructure Development such as National
Highways have increased the economies of scale for Logistics Providers like us. “PM Gati Shakti
National Master Plan” has put the focus on logistics and distribution in India and our company
with large presence is perfectly placed to use the launchpad to unprecedented growth levels in our
company history

Also, the expanding consumer market through out India has made distribution and logistics a
focused area for companies in India and created a big opportunity for integrated service providers
like us in the Market. In the current scenario the logistics industry has emerged as the backbone of
the economy and can play a crucial role in terms of support to the national economy. The
government policies also witnessed the growth of logistics transportation and warehousing sector
by developing logistics infrastructure such as dedicated freight corridors, logistics parks, trade
warehousing zones, port modernization, rationalization of taxes and focus on creating a skilled
workforce for logistics and supply chain.

Further I wish to inform you that in last financial year the company has launched its aggregator
model 3PL and warehousing services to great success the dedicated and committed efforts of the
team RITCO by providing time bound and committed services to its stakeholders/clients. Our
large customers/ clients comprising of both corporate and SMEs belonging to different industries
provide us a discernible competitive advantage and accelerated growth opportunities. Our
operations continue to expand and cover the length and breadth of the country. Your company is
engaged with customers across sectors like Petrochemicals, Electronics, Automobiles, Cement,
Steel, Tyres, Metal, Garments, Minerals and FMCG, which makes our client portfolio well
diversified and allow us to catch the economic growth in coming years, being their service provider
and partner giving growth to your company.

The path forward is marked by many challenges but we are optimistic about driving the company
to newer heights. I would like to take this opportunity to pay my respect and appreciation to all
the shareholders for their continued trust and belief in our decisions. Further since we could



demonstrate our success with the continuous support of our lending institutions thus, I have no
hesitation to place on record our thanks to bankers/lending institutions for their everlasting
support.

I would also like to appreciate all the employees and stakeholders for their continuous etforts and
commitment towards the growth of the company and the Directors for their continuous support
and guidance. We look forward to many more successtul years ahead.



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty-First Annual General Meeting of the Members of M/s
RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED will be held on Tuesday, 27th September, 2022 at 12:00 Noon through
Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual Means ("OAVM”) facility at 508, 5t Floor, Jyoti
Shikhar Tower, District Centre, Janak Puri, New Delhi-110058 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
ITEM NO. 1
To consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2022 and the Profit and Loss

Account for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 and the Directors' and Auditors' Reports

thereon.

ITEM NO. 2
TO APPOINT THE DIRECTORS, WHO ARE LIABLE TO RETIRES BY ROTATION AND
BEING ELIGIBLE OFFERS THEMSELVES FOR RE-APPOINTMENT:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder Mrs. Roma Wadhwa (DIN-08295808), who retires by rotation, and
being eligible, offer herself for the re-appointment be and is hereby re-appointed as Director

of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
ITEM NO. 3

CHANGE IN DESIGNATION OF MR. RANU JAIN FROM ADDITIONAL DIRECTOR TO
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following

resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and
all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory moditication(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time

being in force), Mr. Ranu Jain (DIN: 03374680), who was appointed as an Additional Director



(Non-Executive & Independent Director) pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read
with schedule 1V and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appeointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 and the Articles of Association of the Company on 3¢ March 2022, be and
hereby is appointed as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office

for a term of 5 years w.e.f. 3= March 2022.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds
and things, including signing and issuing letter of appointment and to complete all other

formalities as may be required in this regard”

For Ritco Logistics Limited

Sd/-

Man Mohan Pal Chadha Singh
DIN: 01763805

Chairman

A-28, Rose Wood City, Sector-49
Gurgaon, Haryana-122001

Date: 29/08/2022

Place: Gurgaon

Notes:

1. Pursuant to the Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, Circular No. 02/2022 dated May
5, 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA Circulars’) and Circular dated
May 13, 2022 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India("SEBI Circular’) and all
other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of the Members to
EGM/AGM venue is not required and general meeting to be held through video
conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, members can attend and
participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM only. The detailed procedure for
participation in the meeting through VC/OAVM is available at the Company’s website
www.ritcologistics.com. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of
the Company.

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is
not available for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint



10.

authorised representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate
there at and cast their votes through e-voting,

The Members can join the EGM/ AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after
the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Corporate Members intending their authorized representative to attend the meeting are
requested to send a certified copy of Board Resolution authorizing their representative to
attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. The said Resolution/ Authorization shall be
sent to the Scrutinizer by email through their registered email address to
mukunvivekandcompany@gmail.com with copies marked to the Company at
cs@ritcologistics.com.

. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted

for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting

is not annexed hereto.

In compliance with the aforesaid Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circulars and SEBI
Circular dated May 12, 2020, the Notice of AGM along with Annual Report 2021-22 is being
sent through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with
the Company/ Depositories. Member may note that Notice and Annual Report 2021-22 has
been uploaded on the website of the Company at www ritcologistics.com The Notice can
also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange ie. BSE Limited at
www.bseindia.com and National Stock Exchange of India at www nseindia.com

. Though, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member is entitled to attend and vote at

the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/ her behalf, since this AGM
is being held pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the
members is not available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are
not annexed to this Notice.

The shareholders who had not registered their email address with the company:

a. Incase of shares held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 Digit DPID + CLID
or 16 Digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of consolidated account
statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), Aadhar (self-attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@ritcologistics.com.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and related Rules and Register of Contracts
or Arrangements in which directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act,



2013 and related Rules thereunder will be available online for inspection by Members of
the Company.

11.In compliance with the atoresaid MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM and Directors Report
along with annexures for the financial year 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic
mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company.

12. E-Voting is available to members as per the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of The Company (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 the
members can exercise their vote by electronic means from 24t September, 2022, 09.00 AM
till 26tk September, 2022, 5.00 PM.

13. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed
from 21% September, 2022 to 27 September, 2022 (both days inclusive). The Record date
/ Cut- off date to determine the eligibility of members for the purpose of the voting at the
21+ Annual General Meeting is 20 September, 2022.

14. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity
share capital of the Company as on the Cut-off date i.e. 20t September, 2022.

15. Pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, details of directors seeking
appointment/reappointment at the Meeting are given in detail, is annexed hereto.

16. Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders:

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode can register directly with the depository or will have the option of accessing various
ESP portals directly from their demat accounts.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

1. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL

1. Existing IDeAS wuser can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz.
https:/ /eservicesnsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. On the e-
Services home page click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login"" which is
available under 'IDeAS' section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services and
you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to “InstaVote” website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservicesnsdl.com Select "Register Online for IDeAS Portal" or click at
https: / / eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb /IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https:/ /eservicesnsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available
under 'Shareholder/ Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful




authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name ie.
LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period.

2. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL
1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through their user id and

password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for wusers to login to Easi / Easiest are
https:/ /web.cdslindia.com/ myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on
New System Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be able to see the E Voting Menu.
The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on
LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https:/ /web.cdslindia.com/ myveasi/ Registration/ EasiRegistration.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat account
number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the
respective ESP i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to
”InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3. Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through their depository
participants
You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in,
you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successtul authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
teature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and
you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form is given below:

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form as on the cut-off date for
evoting may register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in
2. Click on “Sign Up” under 'SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details:-

A.

B.

User ID: Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio
Number registered with the Company

PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have
not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the
sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

DOB/DQL: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DQI) (As recorded
with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)

Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded
with your DP/Company.



*Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 'C’ and ‘D', shall provide
their Folio number in "D’ above

- Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters,
at least one special Character (@!#5&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and
at least one capital letter).

- Click “contirm” (Your password is now generated).

3. Click on “Login” under 'SHARE HOLDER’ tab
4. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on
Submit’.

Cast your vote electronically:

1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select "View’
icon.

2. E-voting page will appear.

3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option
‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the "View
Resolution’ file link).

4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Yes’, else to change your
vote, click on "No” and accordingly modify your vote.

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required
tolog on the e-voting system of LIIPL at https:/ / instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves
as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also required to upload a scanned
certified true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/ power of attorney etc. together with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the
‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body” login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional
shareholders:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk
by sending a request at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 - 4918 6000.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for
any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
holding securities in demat | helpdesk by sending a request at evoling@nsdl.co.in or call at
mode with NSDL toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
holding securities in demat | helpdesk by sending a request at
mode with CDSL helpdesk.evotine@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or
022-23058542-43.




Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the password:

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID
[Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option
available on the e- Voting website of Link Intime: https:/ /instavote.linkintime.co.in

- Clickon "Login” under 'SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click forgot password?’
- Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on
“SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-
mail address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information
about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account
Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. The password should contain minimum 8
characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and
at least one capital letter.

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is
Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the
password:

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website.

- Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.

- For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

- During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have

voted on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

For Ritco Logistics Limited

Sd/-

Man Mohan Pal Chadha Singh
DIN: 01763805

Chairman

A-28, Rose Wood City, Sector-49
Gurgaon, Haryana-122001

Date: 29/08/2022
Place: Gurgaon



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013.
ITEM NO. 3

The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to appointment and tenure of the
Independent Directors have come into force with effect from April 1, 2014 which requires every
Public Company fulfilling the prescribed criteria as laid down in Rule 4 of Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to appoint an Independent Director on
its Board and the Independent Director shall not be included in the total number of directors for
retirement by rotation.

Accordingly, in terms of provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Board of
Directors of the Company recommended on the suggestion of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company and subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company, Mr. Ranu
Jain, as an Additional and Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company within the
meaning of Section 2(47) read with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 for a term of 5
consecutive years commencing from March 3rd, 2022

A brief profile of Mr. Ranu Jain (DIN: 03374680), including nature of his expertise, is provided
below;

Profile of Independent Director

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Ranu Jain (DIN: 03374680), who was appointed as an Additional
and Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company with effect from March 3=, 2022 for a
period of 5 years, fulfils the conditions specified under Section 149(6) and Schedule 1V of the
Companies Act 2013 and is Independent of the management. Considering his vast experience as a
finance professional, his presence on the Board will be of immense value to the Company.

Further, as the roles and responsibilities of Independent Directors have undergone significant
changes demanding greater involvement in the supervision of the Company, it is proposed that
the Mr. Ranu Jain be paid the sitting fees, within the limits prescribed under the Act and Rules
thereunder and as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, for attending the
meeting(s) of the Board or any Committee thereof and reimbursement of any expenses for
participation in the board and other meetings.

Further, as stipulated under Secretarial Standard-2, brief profile of Mr. Ranu Jain is provided below
in Table A:

Table A
Brief Profile
Name of Director Ranu Jain
Age 40 Years
Qualifications B. Com., MA (Sociology), CA




Experience

12 years of extensive experience in Finance &
Accounts in the different sectors such as
Retail, Banking, Auditing, Management
Consultancy, Finance & Accounts. Sound
knowledge of Indian Accounting Standards,
Income Tax Act, GST, and Related Acts.
Expereince in finalizing balance sheet (Indian
GAAP) and providing assistance in the
development of financial planning and
analysis exercises/reporls. Expereince in
implementing accounting / financial systems
with a view to ensure smooth accounting
operations and facilitate internal financial
control. Demonstrated excellence in a leading
audit firm, involving mainly statutory and
internal audits in various sectors. Proficient in
managing a wide spectrum of finance &
accounts activities related to accounting
control systems and procedures, fund
management, reconciliations, and MIS
systems, banking and accounts
receivables/payables and taxation planning.
Adept in spearheading commercial &
financial planning initiatives; deft in Fund
Management, Budgeting & Cost Control, and
Labour Law Compliance.

Details of remuneration

Sitting Fees only for board and committee
meetings

Date of first appointment 3t March, 2022
Shareholding in the Company NIL
Relationship with other director/ Manager None

and other KMP

Directorships of other Board

1. Gapeseed Consulting Private

Limited

2. SunZmars Complete
Consulting Service Private
Limited

3. Zambra Engineering Tradex &
Consultancy Private Limited

4. SME Counselling Private
Limited

Membership/Chairmanship of Committees
of other Board

N. A




Except Mr. Ranu Jain, the appointee, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
proposed resolution.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 3 to be passed as Special
Resolution by the Members of the Company.



DIRECTORS” REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22
To,
The Members,
Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 21st Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. Further
this year marks a special milestone in the company’s history being the year the company
successfully migrated from the SME Exchange of BSE to the Main Boards of BSE Limited and The
National Stock Exchange of India.

1. Financial highlights

The financial performance of your Company: Rupees in [Lakhs]
Particular FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Revenue from Operation 59,329.04 47,384.26
Total Expenditure 55,249.20 44,252.75
COther Income 340.64 261.19
Profitbefore Interest, Tax, Depreciation/ Amortization 4,420.48 3,392.70
(PBITDA)

Less: Finance Charges 1,331.47 1,392.48
Profit before Depreciation/ Amortization (PBTDA) 3,089.01 2000.22
Less: Depreciation 868.91 1189.11
Net Profit before Taxation (PBT) 2,220.10 811.11
Provision for taxation 592.32 206.20
Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation (PAT) 1,627.78 604.90
Other Comprehensive Income 16.55 12.66
Total Other Comprehensive Income 1,644.33 617.56
Carried forward in Other Equity 1,644.33 617.56
2. State of Company’s affairs and future outlook

In the Financial Year 2022 your company Revenue from Operations increased by 25.21% at

Rs. 59,329.04 Lacs (previous year Rs. 47,384.26 Lacs).

While the Gross Profit (Profitbefore Interest, Tax, Depreciation/ Amortization) PBITDA
increased by 30.29% at Rs. 4420.48 Lacs (previous year Rs. 3392.70 Lacs).



After accounting for all expenses including depreciation, exceptional items and Tax, the
company earned a Profit After Tax increased by 169.10% at Rs. 1627.78 Lacs (Previous year
Rs. 604.90 Lacs).

Your Company is comumitted to its tradition of being growth-oriented while being cost
effective making it competitive in market, by responding faster to the changing
requirements of the market also by expanding its customers and by further strengthening

its already strong presence in the industry.

Change(s) in the nature of business, if any

There is no change in nature of business of the Company during the Financial Year 2021-
22. Your Company continues to be one of the leading Logistics service providers in the

country.

Dividend

The Directors are not recommending any dividend looking at the current scenario of the
economy and future growth prospects of the company and industry in the coming years
the Directors feel the need to reinvest in the company.

Transfer of unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Since there was no unpaid/ unclaimed Dividend in the Company, the provisions of Section

125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.
Transfer to Reserves
The Company is not proposing to transfer any amount to the General Reserve for the

tinancial year 2021-22. All the profit of the Company shall be carry forward to credit

balance of Profit and Loss account of the Company.



Changes in Share Capital

During the period under review, no change took place in the Authorized and Paid-up Share

Capital of the Company.

Authorized Capital
The Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 25,00,00,000/- divided into 2,50,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Capital
The Present Paid-Up Capital of the Company is Rs. 24,47,66,180/ - divided into 2,44,76,618
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Details pertaining to shares in suspense account

No shares of the Company are in DEMAT Suspense Account/ Unclaimed suspense

Accounts.

Details under Section 67 (3) of Act, 2013 in respect of any scheme of provision of money

for purchase of own shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees

During the year under review the Shareholders of the Company has approved the Scheme
to grant share-based benefits to eligible employees with a view to attracting and retaining
talent, to encourage employees to align individual performance with the Company

objectives and to promote their increased participation in the grow th of the Company.

In line with Regulation 14 of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014,
a statement giving complete details, as at 31 March 2022, is available on the website of the

Company www.ritcologistics.com




10. Details relating to material variations
The purpose of the issue was to utilize the proceeds of issue for the Warehouse
development, Technology upgradation, Fleet Centre upgradation, the Working Capital
requirements and general corporate purposes.
The Directors declare that the proceeds had been utilised as per the said purposes in the
prospectus of the Company and no material variations has been done with the issue
proceeds.

11. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Details of Directors or key managerial Personnel as on 31/03/2022.

Sr. No. | Name Designation Date of Appointment
Man Mohan Pal Chadha
1 Whole Time Director 06/03/2019 as WTD
Singh
2 Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi Managing Director 23/08/2001
3 Roma Wadhwa Director 06/12/2018
. Vikram Suri Independent Director 24/12/2018
Aditya Kumar Verma Independent Director 06/01/2022
5
Ranu Jain Independent Director 03/03/2022
6
Dhananjay Prasad CEO 22/05/2018
7
Gautam Mukherjee CFO 03/03/2022
8
Gitika Arora Company Secretary 15/01/2021
9
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Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Roma Wadhwa (DIN-08295808),
Director of the company retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders” approval for her re-appointment along

with other required details forms part of the Notice.

During the period under review, Mr. Aditiya Kumar Verma (DIN-07229612) and CA Ranu
Jain (DIN-03374680) have been appointed as Independent Directors of the Company as on
oth January, 2022 and 3 March, 2022 respectively and Mr. Gautam Mukherjee has been
appointed as a CFO of the Company dated 34 March, 2022.

Mr. Dhruv Gulati and Mr. Shyam Sundar Elwadhi have resigned from the Directorship of
the Company as on 2»¢ November, 2021 and 14t February, 2022 respectively and Mr. Man
Mohan Pal Singh Chadha has resigned from the post of CFO of the Company on 14t

February, 2022 while continuing as Whole time Director and Chairperson of the Company.

Declaration by Independent Director

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director of the

Company stating that:

(i) they meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations; and

(ii) as required vide Rule 6 (1) & (2) of the Companies (Appointmentand Qualifications
of Directors) Rules, 2014 they have registered their names in the Independent

Directors Databank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.
Based on the declarations received from the Directors, the Board confirms, that the
Independent Directors fulfil the conditions as specified under Schedule V of the Listing

Regulations and are independent of the management

In the Opinion of the Board there has been no change in the circumstances affecting their

status as Independent Directors.

Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors
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Disclosure pertaining to familiarisation programme for Independent Directors is provided

in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

Schedule IV of the Act, Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard - 1 on Meetings of the
Board of Directors mandates that the Independent Directors of the Company hold at least

one meeting in a year, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors.

The Independent Directors Meeting was held on March 31, 2022. The Independent
Directors, inter alia, discussed and reviewed performance of Non-Independent Directors,
the Board as a whole, Chairperson of the Company and assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company’s management and the Board that

is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

In addition to formal meetings, frequent interactions outside the Board Meetings also take

place between the Independent Directors and with the Chairperson, and rest of the Board.
Number of meetings of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors met Six (6) times during the financial year 2021-22. The provisions
of Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard - 1 issued by the

Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) were adhered to while considering the

periodicity and time gap between two meetings.

The details of the meetings of the Board are furnished below:

Sr. No. Date of the Board | Board Strength No. of Director
Meeting Present

1 30/06/2021 6 6

2 10/08/2021 6 5

3 13/11/2021 5 4

4 06/01/2022 5 3
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5 24/01/2022 6 6
6 03/03/2022 5 5

Statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by

the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors

Pursuant to Sections (3)(p) and 178(2) of the Act and Regulations 17 and 19 of the Listing
Regulations and Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors have carried out annual performance
evaluation of Board, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of

its Committees.

As the ultimate responsibility for sound governance and prudential management of a
Company lies with its Board, it is imperative that the Board remains continually energized,
proactive and effective. The Companies Act, 2013 not only mandates Board, its Committees
and Directors evaluation, but also at the same time requires the evaluation to be formal,

regular and transparent.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board evaluated the performance of
individual Director(s) on the Board excluding the Director being evaluated, the Board as a
whole, Chairperson of the Board and all of its committees based on the evaluation criteria

of the Company defined under Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

It was further acknowledged that every individual Member and Committee of the Board

contribute their best in the overall growth of the organization.

Managerial Remuneration
The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

Please note that median is calculated for the employee who stayed with Company for the

whole current financial year 2021-22 and the whole previous financial year 2020-21.



a. theratioof the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees

of the company for the financial year;

Directors Total Ratio to median

Remuneration remuneration

Executive Director

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi 3000000 11.57
Mr. Manmohan Pal Singh Chadha 3000000 11.57
Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Roma Wadhwa Nil

Mr. Vikram Suri Nil

Mr. Aditya Kumar Verma Nil

Mr. Ranu Jain Nil

b. the percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief

Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, it any, in the financial year:

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief | % increase in remuneration in the
Financial Officer and Company Secretary financial year
Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi NIL

Mr. Manmohan Pal Singh Chadha NIL

Mrs. Roma Wadhwa NA

Mr. Vikram Suri NA

Mr. Aditya Kumar Verma NA

Mr. Ranu Jain NA
Dhananjay Prasad (CEQO) NIL

Gautam Mukherjee (CFO) NA

Gitika Arora (CS) NIL

c. the percentage increase/(decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the
financial year: The Median remuneration of the employees remained the same as of last

year thus no increase or decrease in the same

d. the number of permanent employees (Other than Director and KMPs) on the rolls of
company: 360
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e.

average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are

any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: NA

remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

The Board’s report shall include a statement showing the names of the top ten employees

in terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every employee who-

(1) if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that
year which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees; NA

(i) if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for 10
any part of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh
and fifty thousand rupees per month; NA

(iii)  if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of
remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate
which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or
whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and
dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company.

NA

Number of shares and any other securities held by non-executive directors. (Clause 2(f) to

Para C of Schedule V of Listing Regulations.): 500 Shares held by Ms. Roma Wadhwa

Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the
expiry of his tenure along with a contirmation by such director that there are no other
material reasons other than those provided. (Clause 2(j) to Para C of Schedule V of Listing
Regulations.): During the period under review, Mr. Dhruv Gulati resigned as independent

director due to his preoccupation with other assignments.

Details of Subsidiary

The Company has no subsidiary.
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Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. Mittal & Associates Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, were
appointed as statutory auditors of the Company to hold office for the term of 5 (Five Years)
from financial year 2019-20 till 2023-24.

The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for ratification by
Members at every AGM has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017
with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification
of appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing AGM.

The Notes to the financial statement refereed in the Audit Report are self-explanatory and
therefore do not call for any comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Auditors” Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The

Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial statement in this Annual Report.

Indian Accounting Standards, 2015

The annexed financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Act, Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Cost Auditors

Our Company was not liable for the appeintment of Cost auditor pursuant to Section 148
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment
Rules, 2014.

Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company has
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appointed M/s Mukun Vivek & Company, Company Secretaries in practice to undertake
the Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit report is

annexed herewith as Annexure 1.

There are no qualifications made by the Secretarial Auditor in his report for the financial

year ended March 31, 2022,

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors have re-
appointed M/s Mukun Vivek & Company, Company Secretaries in practice to conduct the
Secretarial Audit for FY 2022-23.

Committee constitution and Meetings

Audit Committee:

Name of the Members Status in Committee Nature of Directorship
Mr. Vikram Suri Chairman Independent Director
CA Ranu Jain Member Independent Director
Mrs. Roma Wadhwa Member Non-Executive Director
Date of the meeting No. of Members entitled | No. of Members attended

to Attend the meeting
30/06/2021 3 2
15/09/2021 3 3
13/11/2021 3 3
15/01/2022 2 2
05/03/2022 3 3

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Name of the Director Status in Committee Nature of Directorship
Mr. Vikram Suri Chairman Independent Director
CA Ranu Jain Member Independent Director
Mrs. Roma Wadhwa Member Non-Executive Director




Date of the meeting No. of Members entitled to | No. of Members
Attend attended the meeting

02/11/2021 3 3

01/01/2022 2 2

15/01/2022 3 3

22/02/2022 2 2

05/03/2022 3 3

Stakeholder Relationship Commiittee:

Name of the Director Status in Committee Nature of Directorship
Mrs. Roma Wadhwa Chairperson Non-Executive Director
Mr. Vikram Suri Member Independent Director
CA Ranu Jain Member Independent Director

Date of the meeting No. of Members entitled | No. of Members attended
to Attend the meeting
05/03/2022 3 3
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
[Name of the Director Status in Committee Nature of Directorship

Mr. Vikram Suri Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi | Member Managing Director
Mrs. Roma Wadhwa Member Non-Executive Director

Date of the meeting

No. of Members Entitled to

No. of Members attended

attend the meeting
25/08/2021 3 3
15/01/2022 2 2
05/03/2022 3 3
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Management and Operations Committee:

Name of the Director

Status in Committee

Nature of Directorship

Mr. Man Mohan Pal Chadha Singh

Chairman

Whole Time Director

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi

Member

Managing Director

Date of the meeting

No. of Members attended the meeting

20/04/2021

28/04/2021

10/07/2021

08/09/2021

11/10/2021

26/10/2021

09/12/2021

17/01/2022

09/02/2022

16/02/2022

12/03/2022

N NN NN NN NN NN

Internal Complaints Committee:

Name of the Director

Status in Committee

Nature of Directorship

Mr. Man Mohan Pal Chadha

Chairman Whole Time Director
Singh
Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi | Member Managing Director
Mrs. Roma Wadhwa Member Non-Executive Director

Date of the meeting

No. of Members entitled
to Attend

No. of Members attended

the meeting

05/03/2022

3

3

Vigil mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy

In pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil

Mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine concerns has been established.
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The purpose of the “Whistle blower Policy” is to allow employees to raise concerns about
unacceptable, improper or unethical practices being followed in the organization. They will
be protected against any adverse action and/or discrimination as a result of such a
reporting, provided it is justified and made in good faith. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee has been designated for the purpose of receiving and recording any complaints

under this policy.

The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company.

Risk Management Policy

Your Board of Directors has not formulated & adopted Risk Management Policy required
under the Regulation 21 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 as such said provisions not
applicable to the Company.

Extract of the annual return

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2022 in Form MGT - 7 in accordance
with Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Act as amended from time to time and the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, will be made available on the

website of the Company at https:/ /www.ritcologistics.com

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to

which the financial statements relate and the date of the report

There were no material changes and commitments, which affected the financial position of
the Company between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial

statements relates and the date of the report.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators / courts / tribunals

impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future
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There are no significant/ material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals

impacting the going concern status of your Company and its operations in future.

Statement in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the

Financial Statements

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

disclosures.

The Company has an effective internal control and risk-mitigation system, which are
constantly assessed and strengthened. The Company’s internal control system is
commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any Public Deposits, during the year under review.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186

During the year under review, no Loans, guarantees or investments made under section

186.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

Your Company has adopted a Related Party Transactions Policy. The Audit Committee
reviews this policy from time to time and also reviews and approves all related party
transactions, to ensure that the same are in line with the provisions of applicable law and

the Related Party Transactions Policy.

During the year under review, no significant related party transactions made by the

Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated
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persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.
Though there were some transactions between the Related parties and attached as

Annexure IL

Corporate Governance

Your Company embeds sound Corporate Governance practices and constantly strives to
adopt emerging best practices. It has always been the Company’s endeavour to excel
through better Corporate Governance and fair and transparent practices. A Report on

Corporate Governance forms part of this Report as Annexure - 111

M/s. Mukun Vivek and & Co., Company Secretaries, the Secretarial Auditor of the
Company vide their certificate dated August 24, 2022, have confirmed that the Company
is and has been compliant with the conditions stipulated in the chapter IV of the Listing

Regulations. The said certificate is annexed as “Annexure - IV” to this Report.

Fraud Reporting

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any instances of
fraud committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit Committee or
to the Board under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.
During the year under review, the Secretarial Auditor have not reported any instance of
fraud committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit Committee or
to the Board under Section 143(12) read with Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and

rules made thereunder.

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition& Redressal) Act 2013

As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Company has
constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to monitor the anti-sexual harassment
mechanism and complied all the provisions under the said Act. The primary objective of
the said Policy is to protect the women employees from sexual harassment at the place of

work and also provides for punishment in case of false and malicious representations.
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The Internal Complaints Committee as on March 31, 2022 comprise:

1. Mr. Man Mohan Pal Chadha Singh - Chairperson
2. Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi - Member
3. Ms. Roma Wadhwa - Member

During the year under review, there were no cases received/filed pursuant to the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

Details of Downstream Investment

No such downstream investment made during the Financial Year 2021-22.

Details of Voluntary Delisting

Company was not delisted its equity shares as per Regulation 6(1) (a) of SEBI (Delisting of
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009, during the Financial Year 2021-22.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Statement giving the details of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign
exchange earning & outgo in accordance with requirements of Section 134 (3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is as follows: -

A) Conservation of Energy

Not Applicable

B) Technology Absorption, Adoption And Innovation

Not Applicable

C). Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year as follows:-
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(in Rupees)

Foreign Exchange Earning NIL

Foreign Exchange Outgo NIL

Corporate Social Responsibility and its terms of reference

The

and

briet outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") Policy of your Company

the initiatives undertaken by your Company on CSR activities during the year,

composition of the CSR Committee, average net profit for last three financial year and

details of CSR spent during the financial year are set outin the format prescribed under the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and attached as Annexure

V.

Directors” Responsibility Statement

In terms of provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm

that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) the directors have overseen that the annual accounts on a going concern

basis; and
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e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by
the Company and that, to the best of their knowledge, examination and analysis, such
internal financial controls have been adequate and were operating effectively; and

e) the directors had ensured through oversight of the existence of proper
systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that, to
the best of their knowledge, such systems were adequate and were operating

effectively.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established
and maintained by the Company, the work performed by the intemal, statutory and
secretarial auditors and external consultants, including the audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by
management and the relevant board committees, including the audit committee, the Board
is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective

during Financial Year 2021-22.

Secretarial Standards
The company has complied with the applicable secretarial standards as issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and General Meetings.

General

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following

items as there were no transactions/events on these items during the year under review:

- There is no application made or proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the FY 2021-22.

- The requirement to disclose the details of ditference between amount of the valuation
done at the time of onetime settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from

the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof, is not applicable.
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Annexure |

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH 2021

(Form MR-3)
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
Ritco Logistics Limited
508, 5 Floor, Jyoti Shikhar Tower,District Centre
Janakpuri, Delhi- 110058

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Ritco Logistics Limited having CIN:
L60221DL2001PLC112167 (hereinafter called the Company) Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31t March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,

in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
(iii)y  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder;



(v) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz.: -
(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 as;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

The Company have not, Issue and Listing of Debt Securities, Buy-Back of Equity Shares, and
therefore the following regulations are not applicable: -
(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-Back of Securities) Regulations,2018;
and
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,2009 (SEBI ICDR Regulations, up to September 10,2018 And
SEBI ICDR Regulations,2018 w.e.f September 11,2018

(vi) Other laws applicable as per the representations made by the management;
Carriage by Road Act 2007,
Motor Transport Workers Act, 1961
Motor Vehicles Act, 1988
The Petroleum Act 1934
Consumer Protection Act 1986
The Legal Metrology Act, 2009
Food Safety and Standard Act, 2006

Employment and labour Laws



GST Act

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange
and National Stock Exchange (SME).

During the period under review, as per the explanations and representations received from the
Management, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that based on the information provided and representation made by the
Company and on the basis of Compliance report taken on record by the Board, in my opinion
adequate systems and processes exist in the Company to monitor and ensure Compliance with

Other laws applicable, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were

in general, carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

In general, adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and wherever shorter notices
were given, the same was given with the consent of all the Directors and such meeting were held
with the participation of Independent Director/s and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
turther information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

participation at the meeting.

As per the Minutes of the Meetings recorded, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and no

dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that as per the information provided, there are adequate systems and processes
in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure

compliance with other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.



Mukun Vivek & Company

Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Mukun Arora
(Partner)

ACS No.15980
CP No. 4766
Place: New Delhi

Date: 20-08-2022
UDIN: A015980D000820069

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms

an integral part of this report



To,

‘Annexure A’ to the Secretarial Audit Report

The Members,

Ritco Logistics Limited.,

508, 5t Floor, Jyoti Shikhar Tower, District Centre
Janakpuri, Delhi- 110058

Qur report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company and the applicable financial laws such as Direct and Indirect tax
laws have not been reviewed since the same are subject to review under Statutory Audit
and Other Audit/s by designated professionals.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit reportis neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs

of the company.

Mukun Vivek & Company

Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Mukun Arora

(Partner)
ACS No.15980



CP No. 4766

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20-08-2022
UDIN: A015980D000820069



Annexure II
FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with

related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Sl. No. Particulars Details
a) Name of the related party & nature of relationship | Manmohan Pal Singh
Chadha, Wholetime
Director
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transaction Remuneration
Q) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ | On Going
transaction
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | N.A
transaction including the value, if any
e) Date of approval by the Board N.A.
g) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL
Sl. No. Particulars Details
a) Name of the related party & nature of relationship | Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi,
Managing Director
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transaction Remuneration




Q) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ | On Going
transaction

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | N.A
transaction including the value, if any

e) Date of approval by the Board N.A.

2) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

S1. No. Particulars Details
a) Name of the related party & nature of relationship | Gitika Arora, Company
Secretary

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transaction Remuneration

Q) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ | On Going
transaction

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | N.A
transaction including the value, if any

e) Date of approval by the Board N.A.

2) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

S1. No. Particulars Details

a) Name of the related party & nature of relationship | Gautam Mukherjee, CFO

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transaction Remuneration

Q) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ | On Going
transaction

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | N.A
transaction including the value, if any

e) Date of approval by the Board N.A.

g) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL




S1. No. Particulars Details
a) Name of the related party & nature of relationship | Dhananjay Prasad, CEO
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transaction Remuneration
Q) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ | On Going
transaction
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | N.A
transaction including the value, if any
e) Date of approval by the Board N.A.
2) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

For and on behalf of the Board
The Ritco Logistics Limited

Sdy/-

Man Mohan Pal Singh Chadha

(Chairman & Whole Time Director)

DIN: 01763805

A-28 Rose Wood City, Sector-49 Gurgaon-122001

Place: Gurgaon

Date: 29.08.2022




ANNEXURE - III
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A) MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:
1. Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance:
Your Company atfirms that adoption of the good Corporate Governance practices in all its
dealings, operations and actions is sine qua non for enhancement of overall shareholder
value and protection of interests of all its stakeholders including customers, employees,
lenders, suppliers, government and the community in which it operates.
2. Board of Directors:

a) During the Financial Year 2021-22, six Board Meetings were held.

Dates on which they were held: i) 30/06/2021, ii) 10/08/2021, iil) 13/11/2021, iv)
06/01/2022, v) 24/01 /2022, vi) 03/03/2022

The Composition and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board
meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM’) held during the financial year

2021-22:
Name of the Category No. of Board Meetings held and Whether
Director (Chairperson attended during FY 2021-22 attended
/Executive/Non- Entitled Attended last AGM
Executive/
Independent/
Nominee)
Man Mohan Promoter, (&) 6 Yes
Pal Singh Executive
Chadha Chairperson
Sanjeev Kumar Promoter, 6 6 Yes
Elwadhi Executive,
Managing Director
Roma Non-Executive 6 6 Yes
Wadhwa Director
Vikram Suri Independent 6 6 No
Director
Aditya Kumar Independent 2 2 NA
Verma Director
Ranu Jain Independent 1 1 NA
Director




b) Meetings of Committees held during the year and directors” attendance:

Committee | Audit Committee | Nomination and Stakeholders’ Corporate Social
s of the Remuneration Relationship Responsibility
Company Committee Committee Committee
Meetings 5 5 1 3
held

Directors’” | Entitle | Attende | Entitle | Attende | Entitle | Attende | Entitle | Attende
Attendanc d d d d d d d d
e

Man NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Mohan Pal

Singh

Chadha

Sanjeev NA NA NA NA NA NA 3 3
Kumar

Elwadhi

Roma 2 2 5 5 1 1 3 3
Wadhwa

Vikram 5 5 3 3 1 1 1 1
Suri

Aditya NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Kumar

Verma

Ranu Jain 1 1 1 1 1 1 NA NA

The following skills / expertise / competencies have been identified by the Board for the
effective functioning of the Company and are currently available with the Board:

1 Policy Ability to identify key issues and opportunities for the Company
within the industry, and develop appropriate policies to define
the parameters within which the organisation should operate.

2 Finance Qualifications and experience in accounting and/or finance and

the ability to:
- analyse key financial statements;
- critically assess financial viability and performance;




- contribute to strategic financial planning;

- oversee budgets and the efficient use of resources; and oversee
funding arrangements and accountability.

3 Risk Ability to identify key risks to the organization in a wide range of
areas including legal and regulatory compliance, and monitor risk
and compliance management frameworks and systems.

4 Leadership | Extended leadership, entrepreneurial / administrative experience
for a significant enterprise, resulting in a practical understanding
of organization’s operations, systems, processes, technology,
strategic planning, and risk management. Demonstrated
strengths in developing talent, planning succession, and driving
change and long-term growth.

5 Board Service on the Boards of other public companies to develop
service and | insights about maintaining board and management
governance | accountability, protecting shareholder interests, and observing
appropriate governance practices.

While all members of the Board possess skills identified, their area(s) of core expertise is(are)
given below:

Man Mchan Pal Singh Chadha Promoter Chairman and Whole-Time
Director of our Company. He has been

associated with our Company since
incorporation. He has completed his
Bachelor of Commerce from Delhi
University. He is a Second generation
entrepreneur and has over 28 years of
experience in the field of Transportation
and Logistics. He is currently responsible
for supervising and overlooking finance as
well as legal matters of our Company.

Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi Managing Director of our Company. He has
been Director of our company since
inception and has been designated as
Managing Director w.e.f. May 22, 2018. He
has completed his Bachelor of Commerce
from Delhi University. He possesses over 31
years of experience in the sphere of
Transportation and Logistics. Sanjeev
Kumar Elwadhi is involved in oversight of
day to day affairs of our company. He has
been instrumental in business development
particularly related to Conftract Logistics
and Fleet Management.




Roma Wadhwa Non-Executive Director of our Company.
She is on the Board of our Company since
December, 2018. She holds a Bachelor’'s
degree in Art from Delhi University. She
was previously associated with Sun
Security Services.

Vikram Suri Independent Director of Qur Company. He
has completed his Bachelor of Commerce
from Delhi University. He is currently the
Chief Executive Officer of Berkely
Petrochemicals. He has an experience of
around 21 years and has developed an
expertise across diverse fields including
operations and business development. He
has also attended training programmes and
conferences for specialization in Industrial
Sales in USA, Netherlands, Indonesia,
Malaysia, etc.

Aditya Kumar Verma Independent and Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He is Post Graduate with
Masters in Management of Information
Technology from National University of
Singapore and has around 20years of
experience in Logistics, warehousing and
global supply chain management and has
worked in China, Singapore and India.

Ranu Jain Independent and Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He is Post Graduate with
Masters in Management of Arts in
Sociology from Jiwaji University and is a
Chartered Accountant by Profession and
has around 12 years of Practice.

Information given to the Board:

The Company provides the information as set out in Regulation 17(7) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the Board and Board
Committees to the extent it is applicable and relevant. Such information is submitted either
as part of agenda papers in advance of the meeting or by way of presentations and
disclosures during the meeting



Post Meeting Mechanism:

The Important decisions taken at the Board / Board Committee Meetings are communicated
to the concerned departments

Familiarisation Programme for Directors:

The newly appointed Director is explained in detail the compliance required under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other relevant regulations and his / her affirmation is
taken with respect to the same. The details of the familiarisation programmes undertaken by
the Company are provided in the website of the Company at the weblink:
http:/ /www ritcologistics.com

Independent Directors:

The Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfil the conditions of the independence
specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, meet
with the requirement of Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the Management. A formal letter
of appointment as provided in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Regulations has been issued
to each Independent Director and placed on the website of the Company
http:/ /www ritcologistics.com.

During the period under review, Mr. Dhruv Gulati resigned as independent director due to
his preoccupation with other assignments.

Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors has adopted the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company. The said Code has been communicated to the
Directors and the Senior Managers from whom the necessary atfirmation has been received
with regard to the compliance of the Code. A declaration in this regard by the Managing
Director is furnished at the end of the report. The Code has been placed on the Company's
website http://www.ritcologistics.com. Code of Conduct for Directors also contains their
duties approved by the Board to be in line with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the same has been placed on the
Company's website at the link: http:/ /www ritcologistics.com

Audit Committee:
A qualified and independent Audit Committee, meeting the requirements of Regulation 18

of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013, has been constituted.

Audit Committee comprises (i) Mr. Vikram Suri, Chairman (ii) CA Ranu Jain, (with effect
from 05.03.2022) Non-Executive Independent Directors and one Non-Executive (iii) Mrs.



Roma Wadhwa. Members of the Audit Committee have considerable experience and
expertise in the field of Industrial, Financial and Corporate Business Management.

Ms. Gitika Arora, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer acts as the Secretary to the Audit
Committee.

Statutory, Internal and Cost Auditors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Executives
attend the meetings to answer the queries raised by the Committee.

During the Financial Year 2021-22, five Audit Committee Meetings were held:
Dates on which they were held: i) 30/06/2021, ii) 15/09/2021, iii) 13/11/2021, iv)
15/01/2022, v) 05/03/2022

The necessary quorum was present at all these Meetings.
Broad terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under:

i) the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the company;

ii) review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

iii) examination of the financial statement and the auditors' report thereon;

iv) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related
parties;

v) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

vi) valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

vii) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

viii) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

- The Audit Committee also reviews the following information as and when required:

- Management Discussion & Analysis of financial condition and results of operations

- Statement of significant Related Party Transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee)

- Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory

Auditors
- Internal Audit Reports relating to internal control weaknesses

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Composition:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises (i) Mr. Vikram Suri, Chairman (ii) CA
Ranu Jain, (with effect from 05.03.2022) Non-Executive Independent Directors and one Non-

Executive (iii) Mrs. Roma Wadhwa. The composition of this Committee is pursuant to the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and



Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the Financial Year 2021-22, five Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings
were held:

Dates on which they were held: i) 02/11/2021, ii) 01/01/2022, iii) 15/01/2022, iv)
22/02/2022, v) 05/03/2022

The necessary quorum was present at all these Meetings.

Broad terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:

i) identify persons who are qualified to be Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their
appointment and remove.

ii) carry out evaluation of every Director's performance

iii)formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and

iv)recommend to the Board a Policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) and employees one level below the KMP.

While formulating the said Policy the Committee should ensure that

a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully

b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance bench marks and

¢) remuneration to Director, Key Managerial Personnel and employees one level below
the KMP involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-
term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

Remuneration to Director:
- all pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the
listed entity; - NA
- criteria of making payments to non-executive directors. Alternatively, this may be
disseminated on the listed entity’s website and reference drawn thereto in the annual
report; - NA
- disclosures with respect to remuneration: in addition to disclosures required under the
Companies Act, 2013, the following disclosures shall be made:
1) all elements of remuneration package of individual directors summarized under
major groups, such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension etc.-NA
2) details of fixed component and performance linked incentives, along with the
performance criteria;- NA
3) service contracts, notice period, severance fees;- NA
4) stock option details, if any and whether issued at a discount as well as the period
over which accrued and over which exercisable.- NA



10.

11.

Performance Evaluation:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual
evaluation of its own performance, performance of the Directors individually as well as the
evaluation of working of its Committees.

The performance evaluation of Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried
out by the Independent Directors. The Board of Directors expressed its satisfaction over its
own performance, performance of its Committees and all the Directors individually.

The criteria for nomination of Directors, KMP, Senior Management Personnel and their
remuneration including criteria for promotion is described in Nomination and
Remuneration Policy of the Company which can be accessed at the website of the Company

at http:/ /www.ritcologistics.com

Subsidiaries:

The Company has no subsidiary.

Details of Equity Shares of the Company held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st
March, 2022:

Name of the Non-Executive Director No. of shares of Rs.10/- each
Roma Wadhwa 500
Management:

Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Directors’ Report.

CEO/CFO Certification:

In accordance with the requirements of the Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board of Directors of the
Company, the Audit Committee and the Auditors have been furnished with the requisite
Compliance Certificate from President and Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary.

Stakeholders Grievance / Relationship Committee:

Stakeholders Grievance / Relationship Committee comprises of (i) Mrs. Roma Wadhwa,
Chairperson, Non-Executive Director and Two Non-Executive Independent Directors (ii)
Mr. Vikram Suri (iii) CA Ranu Jain, (with effect from 05.03.2022). The Committee looks into
the redressal of the shareholders' complaints like non-receipt of Annual Report and

declared Dividend and other matters.



12.

13.

Ms. Gitika Arora, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer acts as the Secretary to the
Committee.

Investor complaints received and redressed during the year ended 31.3.2022: Nil
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

CSR Committee comprises(i) ) Mr. Vikram Suri, Chairpman, Non-Executive Independent
Director (ii) Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi, Managing Director (iii) Mrs. Roma Wadhwa,
Non-Executive Director.

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee broadly comprises:

To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy
indicating activities to be undertaken by the Company in compliance with provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder

To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities

To monitor the implementation of the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time

During the Financial Year 2021-22, Three Committee Meetings were held on:
Dates on which they were held: i) 25/08/2021, ii) 15/01/2022, iii) 05/03 /2022

The necessary quorum was present at all these Meetings.

The Company formulated CSR Policy which is placed on the website of the Company at
http://www.ritcologistics.com

Independent Directors Meeting;:

Independent Directors Meeting was held on 31.3.2022. Lead Independent Director Sri
Vikram Suri informed the Board that the following matters were discussed:

Evaluation of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole.
Evaluation of performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the view
of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors

Evaluation of the quality, content and timeliness of flow of information between the
Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reascnably
perform its duties. Details of familiarisation programme for Independent Directors is

placed on the website of the Company at http:/ /www ritcologistics.com

He further informed the Board that Non-Executive Directors, Committees and Board as a

whole performed effectively



14. Details of General Body Meetings:

Annual General Meetings:

i)  Particulars of the last three Anmual General Meetings held at the Regd. Office, Delhi.

Year Date & Time

2019 Monday 30th September 2019 at 11:30 A:M
2020 Monday 28th September 2020 at 11:30 A:M
2021 Tuesday, 28t September, 2021 at 12:00 Noon

ii) Special Resolutions passed at the last three Annual General Meetings:

Year Subject Matter

2019 Change in Designation of Mr. Man Mohan Pal Singh Chadha as Whole-
time Director of the Company

2020 NIL

2021 Continuation of holding of office by Mr. Shyam Sunder Elwadhi

(DIN:08098878) who has attained the age of 75 (Seventy-Five) years as on
February 28, 2019 and who were liable to retires by rotation and being

eligible offers himselves for re-appointment

iii) Special Resolution was passed in the last year through Postal Ballot

Equity Shares of the Company from
SME Platform of BSE Limited (BSE
SME) to Main Board of BSE Limited
and NSE Limited.

S. No. | Subject Matter Details of Voting

1 Approval of Employee Stock Option | Passed by requisite majority
Plan of the Company

2 Approval of Allocation and Grant of | Passed by requisite majority
Stock Options to Employees

3 Migration and Listing/Trading of | Passed by requisite majority




4 Appointment of Mr. Aditya Kumar | Passed by requisite majority
Verma (DIN: 07229612) as an

Independent Director of the Company

iv) No Special Resolution requiring Postal Ballot was passed in the last Annual General
Meeting and no Special Resolution requiring Postal Ballot is being proposed at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting,

v) No Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot

15. Affirmations and Disclosures:

i) Compliance with governance frame work:
The Company has complied with the applicable mandatory requirements specified
in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

ii) Related Party Transactions:
All transactions entered into with the Related Parties as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 during the Financial Year were in the ordinary course of business
and on arm's length basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013. There were no materially significant transactions with the

Related Parties during the Financial Year.

As required under Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company formulated a Policy for dealing
with Related Party Transactions. The Policy is available on the website of the

Company at http:/ /www.ritcologistics.com

None of the transactions with Related Parties was in conflict with the interest of the
Company. All the transactions are in the normal course of business and on an arm's

length basis or fair value.



iii)

iv)

Details of Non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on
the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter
related to capital markets during the last three years:

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) imposed a fine of Rs. 5,900/~ for one day delay in
filing March quarter result 2021 as per Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR}) Regulations,
2015. Company paid the said amount.

Whistle Blower Policy:

Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism for Directors
and employees to report to the management about the unethical behaviour, fraud
or violation of Company's Code of Conduct. The mechanism provides for adequate
safeguards against victimisation of employees and Directors who use such
mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit

Committee in exceptional cases.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

In the preparation of the Financial Statements, the Company has followed the
Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
significant Accounting Policies which are consistently applied are set out in the

Notes to the Financial Statements.

16. Means of Communication:

i)

ii)

Quarterly financial results are published in "Financial Express" (English) and
"Jansatta" (Hindi). The results are displayed on the Website of the Company, ie.,
www.ritcologistics.com

The Company has issued the press release about its financial results during the year.

17. General shareholder information:

i)

Annual General Meeting
Date and Time : Tuesday, 27th September, 2022 at 12:00 P.M.
Venue : Meeting will be held through Video



vi)

Financial Year
Dates of Book Closure

Listing on Stock Exchange
And Stock Code

Market Price Data

Performance in comparison :

To BSE SENSEX

Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual
Means (“OAVM") facility at 508, 5th Floor,
Jyoti Shikhar Tower, District Centre, Janak
Puri, New Delhi-110058

1st April to 31st March

21.9.2022 to 27.9.2022 (both days inclusive)
BSE Limited

Stock Code: 542383

ISIN: INEO1EG01016

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd
NSE SYMBOL: RITCO (Listing starts on 12t
April, 2022)

High / low price of Company's Equity Shares
quoted on the BSE, Mumbai during each
month of the Financial Year 2021-22.

Month High Low
April, 2021 24.20 15.00
May, 2021 29.65 19.80
June, 2021 31.40 22.85
July, 2021 33.80 23.95
August, 2021 31.00 24.60
September, 2021 55.75 28.00
October, 2021 56.00 36.25
November, 2021 50.80 38.55
December, 2021 52.00 42.50
January, 2022 75.30 47.35
February, 2022 74.10 63.50
March, 2022 72.00 65.10

The benchmark equity index BSE Sensex
gained 18.29 per cent to 58,568.51 on March
31, 2022 from 49,509.15 on March 31, 2021.
While RITCO gained 314.20 per cent to Rs.70
on March 31, 2022 from Rs. 16.9 on March
31,2021



vii)

viii)
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Registrars and Share
Transfer Agent

Share Transfer System: Transfer of shares of a listed Company can only be effected
in dematerialised form in terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Shareholders
holding shares in the certificate form are therefore requested to dematerialise their
shares in their own interest. The Company obtains, through its Registrars and Share

Chart Title
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=== Ritco BSE
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Noble Heights, 1st Floor, Plot NH 2,
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Janakpuri, New Delhi - 110058

Tel No.: 011-41410592
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Transfer Agent, from a Practising Company Secretary annually a certificate of

compliance with the Share Transfers, Transmissions and Issue of Duplicate Share
Certificates formalities as required under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and files through

electronic filing a copy of the said Certificate with the Stock Exchange.

a) Shareholding pattern as on 31st March, 2022:

S. No. | Category No. of shares % of holding
1 Promoter & Promoter Group | 17876618 73.0355
2 Public 6600000 26.9645
b) Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2022:
Shareholding of Nominal Value Rs. | No of % of
10/- Shareholders Shares




0-5000 460 4.07
5000-10000 60 1.9
10000-20000 28 1.63
20000-30000 14 1.35
30000-50000 6 0.99
50000-100000 9 26
100000-200000 10 6.46
200000 & above 9 80.99

596 100

¢) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report: As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified
Practising Chartered Accountant carries out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the
total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Ltd., (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Ltd., (CDSL) and the total issued and listed
capital. This audit is carried out on quarterly basis and the report thereon is
submitted to the Stock Exchange where the Company's shares are listed. The
audit contirms that the total Listed and Paid-up Capital is in agreement with the
aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialised form (held with NSDL
and CDSL).

B) DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS:

The Company has complied with the following non-mandatory / discretionary requirements of
Regulation 27(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations:

i) Reporting of Internal Auditor
Internal Auditors directly report to the Audit Committee.

ii) Audit qualification
The Financial Statements of the Company are free from any qualification by the
Auditors.

The other non-mandatory / discretionary requirements will be adopted as and when considered
necessary.



ANNEXURE - I11(A)

DECLARATION ON ADHERENCE TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT

To,
The Members of Ritco Logistics Limited

I hereby confirm that pursuant to the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has obtained from all the members of
the Board and Senior Management Personnel, affirmation(s) that they have complied with the
Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel in respect of the financial
year ended March 31, 2022.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

The Ritco Logistics Limited

Sd/-

Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi
Managing Director
DIN:- 02694204

Place: Gurgaon

Date: 29.08.2022



ANNEXURE - I11(B)

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION
To,
The Board of Directors ("Board”)
Ritco Logistics Limited
508,5th Floor, Jyoti Shikhar Tower
District Centre, Janakpuri
New Delhi-110058

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of Ritco Logistics Limited
(”the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2022 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit
Committee, deficiencies, if any, in the design or operation of such internal controls, of which we
are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectity these deficiencies.

4. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:

i. there are no significant changes in internal controls over financial reporting during the year;
ii. there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and

iii. there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

For Ritco Logistics Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Dhananjay Prasad Gautam Mukherjee
CEO CFO

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 29.08.2022



ANNEXURE - 111(C)
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Board of Directors ('Board”)
Ritco Logistics Limited

508,5th Floor, Jyoti Shikhar Tower
District Centre, Janakpuri

New Delhi-110058

We have examined the following documents:

() Declaration of non-disqualification as required under Section 164 of Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act);
(ii) Disclosure of concern or interests as required under Section 184 of the Act; (hereinafter

referred to as ‘relevant documents”)

as submitted by the Directors of Ritco Logistics Limited (“the Company”) having its registered
office at 508, 5th Floor, Jyoti Shikhar Tower, District Centre, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058, to the
Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”) for the Financial Year 2021 - 2022 and Financial
Year 2022 - 2023 and relevant registers, records, forms and returns maintained by the Company
and as made available to us for the purpose of issuing this Certificate in accordance with
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Clause 10(i) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. We
have considered non-disqualification to include non-debarment by Regulatory/ Statutory
Authorities.

It is the responsibility of Directors to submit relevant documents with complete and accurate
information in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification.

Based on our examination as aforesaid and such other verifications carried out by us as deemed
necessary and adequate (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal
www.mca.gov.in), in our opinion and to the best of our information and knowledge and according
to the explanations provided by the Company, its officers and authorized representatives, we
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company, as listed hereunder for the
Financial Year ending 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed



or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India/ Ministry
of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

Sr. No. Name Designation DIN Date of Appointment
Man Mohan Pal Whole Time 01763805
1 06/03/2019 as WTD
Chadha Singh Director
Sanjeev  Kumar Managing 02694204
2 23/08/2001
Elwadhi Director
3 Roma Wadhwa Director 08295808 06/12,/2018
Independent 08312681
Vikram Suri 24/12/2018
4 Director
Aditya  Kumar Independent 07229612
06/01/2022
5 Verma Director
Independent 03374680
Ranu Jain 03/03/2022
6 Director

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efticiency

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This Certificate has been issued at the request of the Company to make disclosure in its Corporate
Governance Report of the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022.

For Mukun Vivek and Company

Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Mukun Arora

(Partner)

ACS No.15980

CP No. 4766

UDIN: A015980D000839792

Place: New Delhi
Date: 24-08-2022




ANNEXURE - IV

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para E of Securities and Exchange Board of

To,

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)]

The Board of Directors ('Board”)

Ritco Logistics Limited

508,5th Floor, Jyoti Shikhar Tower

District Centre, Janakpuri

New Delhi-110058

Background

We have been approached by Ritco Logistics Limited (“the Company”) to examine the
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, as stipulated
in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the
“Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, for the financial year ended on
March 31, 2022.

Management’s Responsibility

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing
Regulations is the responsibility of the management. The management shall devise
adequate systems, internal controls and processes to monitor and ensure the same.

Our Responsibility
Our responsibility is limited to conduct an examination of the systems, internal controls
and processes adopted by the Company and implementation thereof to monitor and ensure

with the conditions of Corporate Governance and report thereon.

Methodology

4.1 In order to conduct our examination, we were provided with the relevant documents and

information including explanations, wherever required.

4.2 Our examination was conducted in a manner which provided us with a reasonable basis

for evaluating the systems, internal controls and processes adopted by the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance and to certity
thereon.



5. Opinion

Based on our examination as aforesaid, the information, explanations and representations
provided by the management, we certify that, the Company has complied with the with
the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations, for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2022.

6. Disclaimer

a. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of tinancial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

b. This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Bank/Company nor
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs.

For Mukun Vivek and Company
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Mukun Arora

(Partner)

ACS No.15980

CP No. 4766

UDIN: A015980D000839539

Place: New Delhi
Date: 24-08-2022
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IV.

Annexure V

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

[Pursuant to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

A Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and reference to the weblink to the CSR policy and
project or programs.

The Company has developed and implemented its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
policy.

The CSR policy of the Company is hosted on the website of the Company. The Company
deeply acknowledges that its business operations have wide impact on the regions where
it operate, and therefore it is committed to grow in a socially and environmentally
responsible way, while meeting the interest of its shareholders.

As per its CSR policy, Company shall undertake the projects which focus on rural
development, empowerment of women, promoting education, health care and medical
care for poor, needy or under privileged people and any other projects recommended by

the CSR Committee.

The Composition of the CSR Committee

S. Name Designation Position
No.

1 Mr. Vikram Suri Independent Director Chairman

2 Mr. Ranu Jain Independent Director Member

3 Mrs. Roma Wadhwa Non-Executive Director Member

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: Details on
composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board of

Directors are available at http:/ / www .ritcologistics.com/.

Provide the details of Impact Assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable: The Company will carry out impact assessment of projects undertaken,

as may be applicable, and will provide details of the same as part of its future reports as



required pursuant to rule 8(3) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014.

V. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required

for set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable

VI.  Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs. 12,97,47,272.39/ -

VIL A)

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs.

25,94,945.45/-

1.

VIIL. A) Details of CSR spent or unspent during the financial year:

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the

previous financial years: NIL

Amount required to be set off for the financial year 2021-22, if any: NIL

Total CSR obligation for the financial year 2021-22 (7a+7b-7c): Rs.

25,94,94545/ -

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount Total Amount transferred | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spent for the F.Y. | to Unspent CSR Account under Schedule VII as per second
as per section 135(6) proviso to section 135(5)
Amount | Date of transfer | Name of | Amount Date of
the Fund transfer
Rs. 26,00,000/ - Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

B) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL

C) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year:

-1 -2

-3

-4 -5

-6

-7

-8
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26,00,0
ot 0,00
00/-
al 0/-
D) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
E) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
F) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2021-22 (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 26,00,000/-
G) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL
IX) A Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not

Applicable
B) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the

preceding financial year(s): Not Applicable

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR activities of the

Company are in compliance with the CSR objectives and CSR Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

The Ritco Logistics Limited

Sdy-

Man Mohan Pal Singh Chadha

(Chairman & Whole Time Director)

DIN: 01763805

A-28 Rose Wood City, Sector-49 Gurgaon-122001

Place: Gurgaon

Date: 29.08.2022



Management and Discussion Analysis Report

Overview

Logistics is the backbone of the economy. It affects all industries in three sectors - agriculture,
manufacturing and services. With the renewed focus of Government and rebound in economic
growth post-pandemic Indian economic growth rebounded in FY 2021-22 to over 8% and is
forecast to be at 7% in FY 2022-23 and thus Demand for logistics services is expected to grow
robustly in line with economic grow th.

In line with the rebound in economic growth, the Operational Profit (before Finance cost,
Depreciation, Tax and ESPP) of the Company increased to Rs. 4,420.48 lakhs as compared to Rs.
3,392.70 lakhs the previous year.

Industry Structure and Development

In India, the logistics sector has been marred with inefficiencies, depriving the industry of
achieving its full potential.

The largely informal or unorgenised sector has contributed to the country’s growth, but its
structural fragmentation has been neglected for far too long. In recent years, there has been a
paradigm shift in the logistics sector with the move towards making it an organised sector. Taking
its efforts toward improving the logistics sector, in 2021, the government introduced the “PM Gati
Shakti National Master Plan” for Multi-Modal connectivity to various Economic Zones. The
transformative approach toward economic development and sustainability is dependent on the
railways, roads, ports, waterways, airports, mass transport, and logistics.

RITCO is an important participant in Indian Logistics Market with 21+ years of Market Experience
as integrated supply chain solution provider with mix of 3PL & Owned Fleet

RITCO AT A GLANCE

» 100,000 + Vehicles added on Aggregator Platform

* 176 owned vehicles

* 8 Warehouses spanning 375000 sq ft

= 15,50,000+ TPA Cargo handled Last Year

» 300+ destinations 46 Branches

* RITCO goes digital - Paperless

* Migrated from BSE SME Platform to Main Board of BSE/ NSE.



Opportunities and Threats

Indian Economy is the fastest growing major economy in the world and with huge focus by
the Government on Infrastructure Development such as National Highways have increased
the economies of scale for Logistics Providers like us.

The” PM Gati Shakti National Master Plan” has put the focus on logistics and distribution in
India and our company with large presence is perfectly placed to use the launchpad to
unprecedented growth levels in our company history

Also, the expanding consumer market through out India has made distribution and logistics a
focused area for companies in India and created a big opportunity for integrated service
providers like us in the Market.

However, with opportunity and growth comes inherent threats of scalability and operations.
To counter the same your company has focused on keeping a young fleet of vehicles and
deployed aggregator model with 3PL to scale the operations at minimal cost.

Segment-wise or product-wise performance

Transport Services

With integrated 3PL and Owned Fleet @RITCO

We provide tailor made solutions for our B2B customers PAN India, full filling orders to the
tune of Rs. 59329 Lakhs in the FY 2022.

Warehouse Services

RITCO has 8 Warehouses with 2.75 Lakhs sqft of storage space and provide integrated Value
- added services, includes packing, kitting, sorting & labelling. Allowing a robust growth of
28.82% in Revenue from the warehouse segment y-o-y to Rs.133.78 Lakhs in the FY 2022

Outlook

RITCO is a leading Integrated Logistics Service Provider with a growing reach in India. We
continue to work on being the no. 1 choice for our existing customers and expand to new areas
with fast expanding Digital presence and 3PL. Also, with the current economic scenario of
ecommerce and requirements of mainstream distribution services for Indian Economy we are
looking forward to continued expansion of our warehousing services.

Risks and concerns
RITCO has operational risks associated with running logistics business though we have
mitigated the same with combination of strategies including proper insurance coverage young
tleet corporate tieups for repair services and fueling.

Internal control systems and their adequacy
The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all the assets

are safeguarded, protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, and that
transactions are authorised, recorded, and reported correctly. The Company conducts audits



of various departments based on an annual audit plan through an independent internal auditor
and reports significant observations along with “Action Taken Reports” to the Audit Committee
from time to time. The views of the statutory auditors are also considered to ascertain the
adequacy of the internal control system.

The Company regularly updates its risk management policy to protect the property, earnings,
and personnel of the Company against losses and legal liabilities that might be incurred due
to various risks

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance

RITCO financial performance has kept pace with its operational performance and has been
rewarding for all the stakeholders

Revenue (in Crores)
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Key financial ratios

PARTICULARS

FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22
Turnover (in INR Crores) 490.52 473.84 593.29
EBIDTA Amount (in INR Crores) |40.70 33.93 44.20

EBIDTA % 8.23% 7.14% 7.41%




PBT Amount (in INR Crores) 11.27 8.29 2220
PAT Amount (in INR Crores) 8.83 6.23 16.28
PAT % 1.79% 1.31% 2.73%
Debt Equity 1.39 1.14 1.39
Interest Coverage 1.88 1.64 3.32
Debt Service Ratio 0.44 1.94 1.7

Human Resources Development

RITCO employs about 360 people. As the Company is growing fast, the emphasis is now on
competence development of young managers and recruitment of middle management in
specific areas to take care of the future grow th envisaged in the business.

Forward Looking Statements

This report contains forward looking statements based on certain assumptions and
expectations of future events.

The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will
be realised. The Company’s actual results, performance or achievements could thus differ
materially from those projected in any such forward looking statements. The Company
assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements,
on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events.



RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED
CIN: L60221DL2001PLC112167
508, Jyoti Shikhar Tower, District Centre, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Notes As at As at As at
31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021 | 1st April 2020
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 2,130.23 3,276.51 4,164.56
(b) ROU Assets 5 26.35 45.80 4.03
(c) Capital work-in-progress 6 - 83.45 81.63
(d) Fimancial Assets
(1) Others 7 264.53 1,637.35 1,386.73
(e) Income Tax Assets (net) 8c - 181.77 298.21
Total Non-Current Assets 2,421.11 5,224.89 5,935.15
Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(a) Fimancial Assets
(1) Investments 9 - 114.46 102.40
(1) Trade Receivables 10 20,021.96 17,100.39 14,823.10
(111) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 129.25 082.88 1,693.78
(1v) Bank balances other than (i1) above 12 2,380.05 205.01 125.16
(v) Loans and advances 13 61.49 68.11 67.16
(v) Others 14 3,249.13 267.91 267.67
(b) Other Current Assets 15 2,021.18 1,012.30 919.85
Total Current Assets 27,863.06 19,751.06 17,999.12
Total ASSETS 30,284.18 24,975.95 23,934.27
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 16 2,447.66 2,447 .66 2.447.66
(b) Other Equity 17 9,946.73 8,302.40 7,684.84
Total EQUITY 12,394.39 10,750.06 10,132.50
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Fimancial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 18 968.48 2,526.93 4,232.29
(1) Lease Liabilities 8.64 28.42 0.74
(b) Provisions 20 83.11 82.21 70.40
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 8b) 21.58 32.30 60.22
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,081.81 2,669.87 4,363.65
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 21 16,270.41 11,137.75 9,174.93
(1) Lease Liabilities 22 19.78 18.38 3.29
(11) Trade Pavables 23
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - -
enterprises; and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 339.35 255.20 173.39
and small enterprises.
(1v) Other Financial Liabilities 24 22.52 22.52 37.49
(b) Other Current Liabilities 25 28.03 16.21 8.30
(c) Provisions 26 78.25 105.96 40.73
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 27 49 .64 - -
Total Current Liabilities 16,807.98 11,556.02 9,438.13
Total EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 30,284.18 24,975.95 23,934.27
Significant accounting policies & key accounting estimates & judgements 1-3
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 4-47
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
As per our Report of even date annexed RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED
For MITTAL AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.- 106456 W
Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi Man Mohan Pal Singh Chadha
(Managing Director) (Chairman & Whole Time Director)
Sd/- DIN:- 02694204 DIN:- 01763805
Hemant Bohra
Partner
Membership No. : 165667
UDIN : 2216566 7AJWXUJ1550
Place:- Mumbai Sd/- Sd/-
Date:- 30th May, 2022 Gitika Arora Gautam Mukherjee

(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial officer)




RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED
CIN: L60221DL2001PLC112167

508, Jyoti Shikhar Tower, District Centre, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particular Notes Year ended Year ended
articuiars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
INCOME
Revenue From Operations 27 59,329.04 47.384.26
Other Income 28 340.64 261.19
Total INCOME 59,669.68 47,645.45
EXPENSES
Cost of Service 29 52.875.63 42,688.93
Employee Benefit Expenses 30 715.63 597 84
Finance Costs 31 1,331.47 1,392.48
Depreciation Expense 32 868.91 1,189.11
Other Expenses 33 1,657.93 965.98
Total EXPENSES 57,449.58 46,834.34
Profit before tax 2,220.10 811.11
Tax Expense 8a)
Current Tax 608.61 238.38
Deferred Tax (16.29) (32.17)
Total Tax Expense 592.32 206.20
Profit for the period 1,627.78 604.90
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans 2212 16.92
Income tax relating to re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans (5.57) (4.26)
Total Other Comprehensive Income 16.55 12.66
Total Comprehensive Income 1,644.33 617.56
Earnings Per Share (In Rs) 34
(1) Basic 6.65 247
(2) Diluted 6.65 2.47
Significant accounting policies & key accounting estimates & judgements 1-3
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 4-47

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date

As per our Report of even date annexed

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For MITTAL AND ASSOCIATES RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.- 106456 W
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Hemant Bohra Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi Man Mohan Pal Singh Chadha
Partner (Managing Director) (Chairman & Whole Time Director)
Membership No. : 165667 DIN:- 02694204 DIN:- 01763805
UDIN : 22165667AJWXUJ1550
Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 30th May, 2022
Sd/- Sd/-
Gitika Arora Gautam Mukherjee

(Company Secretary)

(Chief Financial Officer)




RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED

CIN: L60221DL2001PLC112167

508, Jyoti Shikhar Tower, District Centre, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2022

(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 2.220.10 811.11
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense 868.91 1,189.11
Fimance Costs 1,331.47 1,392.48
Interest Income (151.19) (145.28)
(ProfityYLoss on sale of property, plant and equipments 12.11 10.09
Acturial gain and loss 22.12 16.92
Operating profit before working capital changes 4,303.53 3,274.42
Adjustments for:
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories - -
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans 6.62 (0.95)
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables (2,921.57) (2,277.29)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Financial Assets (2,981.61) (4.93)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other assets (1,008.88) (92.45)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 84.15 81.81
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities - (14.97)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 11.82 7.91
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (26.81) 77.04
Cash flow from operating activities post working capital changes (2,532.74) 1,050.59
Direct taxes (377.20) (121.94)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) (2,909.94) 928.65
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment (59.19) (614.92)
Sale of Property Plant and Equipment 427.34 310.34
Interest received 151.19 14528
Increase/(Decrease) in Investment 114.46 (12.06)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 633.80 (171.36)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Borrowings 3,574.20 257.46
Interest paid (1,331.47) (1,392.48)
Lease: Principle (18.38) (7.40)
Dividend Paid - -
Net cash used in financing activities (C) 2,224.35 (1,142.42)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (51.80) (385.12)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April 2,792.53 3,177.65
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March 2,740.73 2,792.53
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (51.80) (385.12)

Notes

1. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with ‘Indirect method™ as set out in Ind AS - 7 - *Statement of Cash Flows’, as
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules issued thereunder.

. As at As at As at
Cash and Cash Equivalents 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021 | 1st April 2020
Balances with banks 87.30 696.38 1,336.39
Bank deposit with maturity less than 3 months 41.94 283.63 341.62
Cash on hand 0.02 2.87 15.76
Bank deposit with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 2,380.05 205.01 125.16
Deposits with bank with maturity more than 12 months 231.42 1,604.64 1,358.71
Total 2,740.73 2,792.53 3,177.65

This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date

As per our Report of even date annexed
For MITTAL AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.- 106456W

Sd/-

Hemant Bohra

Partner

Membership No. : 165667
Date :- 30th May, 2022
Place:- Mumbai

Date:- 30th May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED

Sd/-

Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi
(Managing Director)
DIN:- 02694204

Sd/-

Gitika Arora

(Company Secretary)

Sd/-

Man Mohan Pal Singh Chadha

Sd/-

(Chariman & Whole Time Director)
DIN:- 01763805

Gautam Mukherjee
(Chief Financial officer)




RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED

CIN: L60221DL2001PLC112167

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2022
(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Equity Share Capital

As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

As at 1st April 2020

Number

Number

Number

of Shares Amount of Shares Amount of Shares Amount
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up (Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
Opening Balance 24.476,618 244,766,180 24,476,618 244,766,180 24.476,618 244,766,180
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - - - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting vear 24476618 244,766,180 24,476,618 244,766,180 24.476,618 244,766,180
Changes in equity share capital during the year - - - - - -
Closing Balance 24,476,618 244,766,180 24,476,618 244,766,180 24,476,618 244,766,180
(b) Other equity

Reserves & Surplus Other
Retained Securities Comprehensive Total
Earnings Premium Income

Balance as at 1st April 2020 4,937.83 2,747.00 - 7,684.84
Profit for the year 604.90 - - 604.90
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 12.66 12.66
Declared Dividend during the year - - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2021 5,542.73 2,747.00 12.66 8,302.40
Balance as at 1st April 2021 5,542.73 2,747.00 12.66 8,302.40
Profit for the year 1,.627.78 - - 1,627.78
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 16.55 16.55
Balance as at 31st March 2022 7,170.51 2,747.00 29.21 9,946.73

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

As per our Report of even date annexed
For MITTAL AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.- 106456 W

Sd/-

Hemant Bohra

Partner

Membership No. : 165667
UDIN : 2216566 7TAJWXUJ1550
Place:- Mumbai

Date :- 30th May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED

Sd/-

Sd/-

Gitika Arora

Sanjeev Kumar Elwadhi
(Managing Director)
DIN:- 02694204

(Company Secretary)

Sd/-

MPS Chadha

(Chairman & Whole Time Director)
DIN:- 01763803

Sd/-

Gautam Mukherjee

(Chief Financial officer)



RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED

CIN: L60221DL2001PLC112167

Schedules forming part of the standalone financial statements
(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

1 Corporate information

Ritco Logistics Limited is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated and established on August 23, 2001 under the provisions of the Companies
Act,1956. The company is engaged in Transportation activitics. The Company got listed with BSE Limited on SME platform on February 07, 2019

2 Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the Generally accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India (Indian Accounting standards referred to as “IndAS™) as specified under the section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendments rules issued there after.

The companies financial statement upto and for the year ended on 31 March, 2021 were prepared in accordance with the companies (Accounting Standards),
rules 2006 notified under the section 133 of the act and other relevant provisions of the Act.

As these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS, Ind AS 101, First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance of the
Company is provided in note 46.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Director on May 30, 2022.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest

b) Basis of measurement:
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at
fair value as required under relevant IndAS.

¢) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

d) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear, are described below. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

i. Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

ii. Employee benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

iii. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal, contractor and other claims.
By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and
potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the execrcise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future
events.



RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED

CIN: L60221DL2001PLC112167

Schedules forming part of the standalone financial statements
(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

iv. Property Plant and Equipment

Useful lives and residual values are determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at each financial year end. The lives arc
based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the product or service output of the
asset.

3 Significant accounting policies



RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED

CIN: L60221DL2001PLC112167

Schedules forming part of the standalone financial statements
(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

3.1 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
» Held primarily for the purpose of trading
» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
P Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

P It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

P It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There 1s no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve
months as its operating cycle.

3.2 Plant & Equipments

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a scparate assct, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company.

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided using written down value method using rates determined based on management’s
assessment of useful economic lives of the asset.

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used which are aligned with useful lives defined in schedule II of Companies

Act,2013 :

Office Building 60 Years
Furniture & Fixture 10 Years
Vehicles (Four Wheeler) 10 Years
Vehicles (Two Wheeler) 10 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
Truck & Trailors 8 Years

The residual values, uscful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and cquipment are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Derecognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is de-recognized.

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)
Cost of property, plant and cquipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in progress.
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Schedules forming part of the standalone financial statements
(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

3.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication of impairment exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash generating
units (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment
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Schedules forming part of the standalone financial statements
(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

3.4 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets
Provisions:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement
1s virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in respective expense.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

3.5 Income tax
Current tax:
Provision for current tax is made as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax 1s provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of asscts and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based

on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority.



RITCO LOGISTICS LIMITED

CIN: L60221DL2001PLC112167

Schedules forming part of the standalone financial statements
(Rs in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

3.6 Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits:
Employee benefit liabilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc. that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at an

undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
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Post-employment benefit plans:
Defined Contribution Plans:

State governed Provident Fund Scheme and Employees State Insurance Scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid / payable under the
schemes is recognised during the period in which the employees render the related services.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. Currently, the Company’s gratuity scheme is unfunded. The Company recognises the defined
benefit liability in Balance sheet. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan and the related current service cost and, where
applicable past service cost are determined based on an actuarial valuation done using the Projected Unit Credit Method by an independent actuary, which
recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obligations arec measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) is reflected immediately in Other
Comprehensive Income in the Statement of Profit and loss. All other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
as employee benefit expenses. Re-measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss hence it

3.7 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

P In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at

the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of
the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

3.8 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
a) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial asscts are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

> Debt instruments at amortised cost - The Company has cash & cash equivalents, loans and trade receivables classified within this category.

» Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - The Company does not have any financial asset classified in this
category.

» Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL) - The Company does not have any financial
asset classified in this category as on 31st March 2022.

P Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - The Company docs not have any financial asset
classified in this category.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation and
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The amortised cost of the financial asset is also adjusted for loss allowance,

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such
clection 1is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Company has
not designated any such debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IndAS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. Loans and trade receivables.

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

b) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value deducted by, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
transaction costs that are attributable to the liability.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade
pavables, borrowings and other financial liabilities.
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Under the effective interest method, the future cash payments are exactly discounted to the initial recognition value using the effective interest rate. The
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and the maturity amount is added to the
initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial liability over the relevant period of the financial lLiability to arrive at the
amortized cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the amortization under effective interest method is recognized as expense over the
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Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the Derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial asscts and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

3.9 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.10 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
A 5-step approach is used to recognise revenue as below:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determinge the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Freight services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date when the outcome of the
transaction can be estimated reliably.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government which are levied on services such as Goods and service tax

Interest income
Interest income on financial asset is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

3.11 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the sharcholders’ and weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the sharcholders™ and weighted average number of equity shares.

3.12 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals
or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.13 Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by the Company entities at their respective functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of

Non Monetary assct and liabilitics that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. Non monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the exception that the
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings included in the borrowing cost when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those
foreign currency borrowings;

3.14 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets up to
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. The loan origination costs directly attributable to the acquisition of borrowings (e.g. loan processing
fee, upfront fee) are amortised in the year in which they occur

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs cligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are
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4 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Particulars Land O.ffl?e Fu l‘I.lltll re& Vehicles O.fflce Computers Total Assets ROU Assets TOTAL
Building Fixture Equipment
Gross Value
Balance as at 1st April 2020 23.30 782.31 4791 8,555.98 182.98 195.65 18,344.10 4,03 18,348
Additions during the year - 1.21 419.86 8.21 23.42 872.55 52.72 925
Disposals during the year - - - (829.26) - - (1,658.52) - (1,659)
Balance as at 31st March 2021 23.30 782.31 49.12 8,146.57 191.19 219.07 17,558.13 56.74 17,615
Balance as at 1st April 2021 23.30 782.31 49.12 8,146.37 191.19 219.07 9,411.56 56.74 9,468
Additions during the year - 7591 2.98 21.80 19.33 22.80 142.82 - 142.82
Disposals during the year - - - (2,425.20) - - (2,425.20) - (2,425.20)
Balance as at 31st March 2022 23.30 858.22 52.10 5,743.17 210.52 24<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>